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Paskeston

SN02560354               OS 25” second edition XL.             Cosheston

Cadw listed house.
1729      Nicholas Roch (1684-1748) was High Sheriff. His wife Lettice died 12th May 1760, aged 41. His will mentions “my kinsman” Thomas Roch of Butterhill.

1717-1759  Nicholas Roch

1777 Nicholas Roch (1744-1817), son of the above was High Sheriff. He was mayor of Pembroke in 1772, 1792 and 1808. He married Mary Elizabeth John, co-heiress of Dyffryn and Aberelwyn.  She died 11th November 1787, aged 45. There is a memorial to their eight daughters in Cosheston church. There is also one to Anne Illes, their grand-daughter.

1766-1866 Nicholas Roch died at Paskeston. Memorial in Cosheston church states that he was the son of George and Anne Roch and that he married Mary, (1794-1891), daughter of James and Margaret Adamson. He was succeeded by another Nicholas!  George and Anne also had two daughters to whom there is a plaque: Lettice (1795-1870) married William Sackville Hamilton (d1877) of Rosemount, Tenby and Mary (1797-1875) married Henry Sanders of Belfield, Tenby.

Landowners return states that he owned 944 acres. (Francis Jones gives the date as 1873 but the estate had been sold and divided by then.)

30th July 1867:   Sale of the estates in Cosheston including East and West Cosheston farms, a brewery, Brotherhill and Warreston farms of Nicholas Adamson Roch of Paskeston (a total of 730 acres) conducted by Messers Goode and Owen at the Lion Hotel, Pembroke. (in some way the Allen family whose main residence was Cresselly were involved - their names appear on documents; certainly Paskeston  became an Allen house some time soon.)
1894   Allen family.

1901   (Nicholas Adamson Roch DL JP  living at Hill House, Cosheston.)

           Henry George Alllen  QC MA DL JP

1905   Henry George Allen KC MA ChCh(?)Oxon, son of the late J Hensleigh Allen, MP of Cresselly; b 1816, barrister, JP (Pembs and Carms) and DL was liberal MP for Pembroke Boroughs 1880-1886.

           Money seems to have been spent on the immediate surrounds about this time (Present owner).

1914    Col. Newton Seymour Allen DSO.

            (Mrs Roch living at Hill House.)

1919  Newton Seymour Allen DSO DL (1857-1934) High Sheriff was the son of Seymour Philipps Allen and Lady Katherine Fellowes, daughter of  the 4th Earl of Portsmouth who died in 1861. He married Gladys Sybil Evelyn, daughter of Richard Walter Bird-Mirehouse of Angle. In 1941 the widow adopted the name of Allen-Mirehouse.

1919    Col Allen had the farm revalued. The rental for the new tenant (Mr Sidney Thomas) was assessed at £250. This was an increase of £100. Various pleas by Mr Thomas (PRO) failed to affect a reduction. The estate, by now, consisted of little more than the mansion and the farm.

1919    (GC Horticultural Directory and Yearbook):  

            Col. Allen   Gardener  G. Phillips.

1920    Col. Newton Seymour Allen  (Mrs Roch living at Hill House)

1923                “               “         “

1926    Col. Newton Seymour Allen.

1934    Death of Colonel Allen.

Enclosed are photographs of memorials in Cosheston Church to the Roch and Allen families. (1a - 1h).

1939-1945    House used for prisoners of war. Mrs Allen presumeably lmoved to Angle.

1945 or soon afterwards. House aquired by Mr and Mrs Fred Parcell. Mrs Parcell was a Colley

(Builders, builders merchants, etc) of Pembroke. Eventually the Parcell family restored and converted the magnificent coach-house into a fairly large house and sold the mansion.

1970’s    Purchased by a Mrs Preston.

1979 approx.  Purchased by the present owners who have developed about six appartments. They have invested money and labour on house and immediate surrounds.

Paskeston (Hall) was an 18C house to which a larger house was added (1835 - 1855) to the south. The architect was John Cooper of Pembroke Dock. A flat roofed entrance porch and conservatory of timber and glass were added in the late 19C to extend along the west front.

(Cadw listed as a house of two dates with a finely proportioned garden front of Regency character.)

(John Cooper was also responsible for alterations to Upton Castle in the 1860’s which led to some litigation about faulty workmanship).

The OS 25” map (second edition) shows no lodge. The existing “lodge”, which may never have been used as such, is an enlarged and modernised building based on an earlier one which looked as if it were built during or soon after World War II. (It was a small rectangle faced with “decorative” concrete blocks and with a flat (concrete?) or flattish roof. - GH memory)

The walled garden is shown as basically rectangular, EW, but with the west wall sloping slightly from NNE to SSW. On this wall are two glasshouses; one at the SW corner and one towards the NW partly backed by a building on the outside. Outside to the north, east and south are trees within an enclosure.

Visit 14th May 1999. 

The large group of trees surrounding Paskeston can be seen for some distance form the east and from the south.

One approaches from the west through a pair of dressed-stone gate piers(2) which look as if they may have been restored or rebuilt in modern times. The carriage drive soon forks; there are trees between the almost parallel drives and to each side; the largest, most dominant and most numerous are beech. About half way along the right-hand 200 metre drive which leads to the mansion itself, on the left (north) side, is a splendid Quercus ilex, not quite as high as the beech but more sideways branched. This drive ends in the turning area to the west side of the house.(3). It can be seen immediately that  the glazing of the conservatory has been removed; (4a - 4c) against the house wall to the south end, just within the conservatory is an old Camellia with red flowers.(5). There is a large Wistaria on the front of the house.(6).

(further description after the next visit)

The left hand drive, which is not  metalled, goes on past the north face of the mansion, between a pair of dressed stone (modern?) gate piers, (7), through the stable yard and on to the area of farm buildings. A building to the right of the courtyard (a stable?) is now a bungalow. The coach-house, long converted to a private house, is to the left. (8). There is some excellent limestone-work on the front including three wide arches, with two decorative areas of pigeon holes.

After the stable-yard an overgrown area to the right with some ruined stone buildings (9) and a sunken track is all that is left of the more formal gardens. It was not easy to explore further. Ahead is an unusally shaped stone building with a curved wall containing a small window. A door on the north side enters a square room used, at one time, as a dairy by the family which farmed here after the war. A door leads into the further room the west and south walls of which are merged into a semicircle. Why? The eastern wall of this building appears to have been the gable end of something else.

The walled garden was approached with difficulty.

Eight feet high, It is constucted entirely of brick with thicker buttressing on the outside at frequent intervals.. 

The top courses of bricks are laid differently but no real coping can be seen fron ground level (10). The owner states that there is a ridged ceramic coping along most of the wall.

The enclosure has been used for farming and for horses for some time so that few internal features survive. There is no sign of the glasshouses but the structure to the outside of the north end of the west wall partly remains in the form of a wall about 1.20m high, a fireplace in the NE corner, a doorway with flat lintel leading into the garden (formerly into the glasshouse?) and a small, pointed arch window on each side (11). The window arches are of brick with wooden frames. GH has not seen anything quite like this.

The land within the garden slopes down towards the SE corner. The most easterly 30m or so of the south wall was demolished by a previous owner to ease animal access.

At the middle of the east wall there is a slightly-wider-than-usual doorway (12). It has a gently curved brick arch and a wooden frame. Towards the north end there is a bay tree and towards the south end a very tall pear? Outside is a grand lime. The shelter belt around the walled garden is mostly mixed beech and sycamore. There is a clear passage, a sort of lane, along the outside of the north wall.

Exiting to the north one regains the public footpath which has been diverted round the back (north) of the coach-house. East views of the mansion ((13a and 13b). 

Going westwards the path is along the bottom of a large field (enclosure 362) which slopes gently up to the north towards Paskeston farmhouse. On the north horizon are three groups of trees but they must only be visible from the upper floor of the mansion (14a, b, and c).

The NE clump (14a) is planted in a “triangular” area formed by cutting off the corner of the field with a curved hedgebank. At the back, within the hedge, are seven mature beech and one oak. There is a large central beech. Towards the front, and possibly later plantings, are hazel, holly, hawthorn  with some sycamore.

The north clump (14b) is formed by a semi-circular hedgebank projecting into the field. From the back, left to right:  ash, four beech and a dying ash; three beech and a small ash; one oak and several small (3m)  Wych Elm?.  Separate, to the west, in the hedge, is a scrubby oak.

The NW clump (14c) is larger and is at the junction of several fields. There are perhaps 30 or 40 beech, some ash and several smaller sycamore. At the front is a tall Wych Elm? of about 30m.

A large belt of mature beech runs southwards from a point to the west of the walled garden down the slope to the road (ie to the west side of the field below the walled garden. In the centre of the field (enclosure 383)is a mature oak with a fence around. The dead stump of another can be seen 20 or 30m south (15).

The field to the south and south west of the mansion has a mature cupressus-type tree - a wide cone in shape. Along the bottom, next to the road is mixed, mostly post-war planting.

Visit 17th May 1999 by invitation.

The original (18C ?) house, which faced west, can easily be discerned. (3).

The square porch of the mansion (NW corner) is intact though the original doors are not used; instead a modern door has been inserted on the north face. The base of the conservatory (4)  which ran from the porch the length of the west wall is more or less intact. The floor is tiled; it is about a metre high at the southend where a flight of stone steps descends to the level of the terrace which traverses the south (front) of the house. On the wall of the house, at perhaps 3m high is a line of about six (cast?)iron brackets which were matched by the same on the outside bolted into the timber uprights. These were painted pale green; no manufacturer’s name can be found. They project at least two feet rising at perhaps 10 degrees. GH does not understand how the ridge was formed but they supported very large rectangles of thick, not too clear, glass. A broken pane lay at one side; it must have been nearly one inch thick and about  5x4 ft.

The owners are awaiting delivery of a timber replacement conservatory; the metal brackets and window furniture will be re-installed.

There is a wide terrace of three or four metres along the front of the house edged with a composition(?) stone balustrade (16) dating (the owner believes) to about 1905 and a very steep (one in one?) bank down to a lower level. There are low columns at each junction, including for the wide central flight of steps (slabs of slate like stone on brick) which descends in two parts (17). The owner is recreating a side path along the contour each way; one column remains.

A magnificent Wistaria grows up the house front.

The terrace ends in a short flight of steps to a square lawn area.

The north wall is castellated  at the house end. In front of this is a very large Soulangeana-type magnolia. The rest of the north wall is formed of the windowless back of the stable building.

The far (east) end is dominated by cherry laurel and bamboo.

Centrally is a circular feature. The owner states that there was a fountain and small pond but nothing remains of this. It is edged in glazed earthenware tiles of a brownish hue which GH believes to be identical with those (in their thousands) which lined the paths in the walled garden at Upton Castle!

Through the laurels at the east end was, it is said, a path over a stone bridge crossing a sunken lane to a formal garden.

If one goes into the stable yard and walks east one passes the sunken lane going down to the field down the slope. South of a low wall was the formal garden. Traces of  box (Buxus sempervirens) can be seen and ruined stonework. A large beech and two evergreen oak in an east-west line. It is impossible to immagine the form beneath the undergrowth. Perhaps this is a case for further study but the physical problems are considerable.

Back to the front of the mansion: at the lower level the present owner is creating an open lawn area. To the east side a forest of cane is being cut back. To the NW corner of this area, near the SW corner of the house, is a Cupressus-type tree, tall with drooping branches like a fir, and quite narrow.

The metalled southern drive: There is no old or large planting on the south side. The grass verge contains a number of more recent shrubs - fruit trees and a pink-flowering rhododendron. The field boundary is a simple park-type iron railing.

West of the house on the north side of the drive:  a mown area of grass has flowering cherry and relatively modern shrubs. At about 50m is an evergreen oak, multi-branched from the base and a good lime. There are Rhododendron ponticum along the edge from this point. The central “island” is dominated by beech and Scots pine. At about 80m there is a lime; at 100m and at  150m are evergreen oak, then beeches and evergreen oaks.

Of the features in the RCAMW database the carriage drive, isolated copses, parkland, terrace, walled kitchen garden and woodland survive. The conservatory base survives and there are plans for a new glazed structure. Greenhouses, orchard and pond no longer exist, Of relict hedges GH does not feel competent judge.

Documents in file:

Word text.

OS 6” map

OS 25” second edition map.

Western Telegraph Sale Feature December 1999.

Colour photographs of mansion and grounds.

Colour photographs of memorials in Cosheston church.

Sundry notes.

Gazetteer entry:

House, good condition, divided into flats. Coach-house and stables modernised into private dwellings. Carriage drive, parkland and many fine trees. Some garden survives around house. Walled brick-built kitchen garden largely intact.

Very important site.  

